

DIPLOPHOBIA

INCLUDES H Y D R O P H O B I A

DIPLOMANIA Supplement ---- N3F Games Bureau Diplomacy Division ---- Issue Number 26
Editor and Publisher: Don Miller ---- 22 June 1968
Postal Diplomacy Games PAA(1965V), PCA(1966F), PEA(1966K), PFC(1966T), PHC(1966AS),
PIC(1966AT), PJC(1966AZ), PKC(1966BD), PLC(1967B), PNC(1967I), POC(1967N), PPC
(1967AC), PQC(1967AL), PRC(1967AP), PSC(1967AQ), PTC(1967BB), PUC(1968C), PVC
(1968D), PWC(1968E), PXC(1968L), PYC(1968M), PZC(1968V). ---- THIS is war!!!
Also includes following sub-'zines from HYDROPHOBIA: FANTASIA (FAA(1966Be), FBB
(1966Fi), FEC(1966Lk), FJF(1966Tt), FKF(1966Act)); HYSTERIA (FHD(1966Rr), FIE
(1966Ss)); BARAD-DUR (DFD(1966No), GB-1966XF(1966Aax)); DIPSOMANIA (DBB(1966Dg),
DIH(1967Aag)); LIMBO (DAA(1966Cf), DCA(1966Hf), DGA(1966Wf)); SUPERCALIFRAGI-
LISTICEXPIALIDOCIOUS (SAA(1966Op), SEE(1967AAay)); ASTRA (SCC(1967Yaw)); SCHIZO-
PHRENIA (DDD(1966Jl), DHG(1966ABy)). ---- Curiouser and Curiouser....

The Players -- Complete lists appeared in DIPLOPHOBIA #23 and HYDROPHOBIA #3, with
changes in DPBA #'s 24 and 25 and HYPBA #4. A new roster will appear in DPBA #27
or 28. Most important changes since DPBA #25 are as follows:

DIPLOPHOBIA Roster --

Beyerlein, Doug -- VC -- 3934 S.W.
Southern, Seattle, Wash., 98116.
Birsan, Edi -- Add NC.
Bischoff, Dave -- Add QC.
Gemignani, Margaret -- Delete RC.
Hueston, Stephen -- Delete VC.
Lebling, David -- Delete CA.
Ogle, Tommy -- Delete entire entry;
out of game XC.
Reiter, Bob -- Delete TC.
OPEN POSITIONS -- PC, RC, TC, XC.

HYDROPHOBIA Roster --

Birsan, Edi -- Add SAA.
Bischoff, Dave -- Delete DEE, FHD, PME.
Brannan, Dan -- Add SAA.
Brooks, Richard -- Delete DEE, FJF;
Add DJI.
Clark, Frank -- Delete FAA,
Gemignani, Margaret -- Add DJI.
Hoheisel, R. Wayne -- Delete DHG.
Huff, Alan -- Delete DFF; Add DJI.
Lebling, Dave -- Delete FIE; Add DJI.
McIntyre, Michael -- Add DJI.
Miller, Don -- Delete FIE.
Natus, Hal -- Add DJI.
Von Metzke, Conrad -- Add DEE.
Linden, Bill -- SAA -- 83-33 Austin St.,
Kew Gardens, N.Y., 11415.
OPEN POSITIONS -- DCA, DGA, DJI, PME(2), DKJ,
DEE, DDD, DHG(2), DBB.

Both Rosters -- CoA's:

Greene, Jack, Jr. -- 670 Darrell Rd., Hillsborough, Cal., 94010.
Hoheisel, R. Wayne (eff. 28 June) -- 2028 Indiana Ave., Spokane, Wash., 99205.
Koning, John -- 318 South Belle Vista, Youngstown, Ohio, 44509 (216-799-2141).
Mazor, John -- 5924 Marlboro Pike, Wash., D.C., 20028 (RE5-5998).
Price, Janet -- 3223 South 160th, Apt. 309, Seattle, Wash., 98188 (206-CH6-3051).
Reiter, Dick -- Staff, Camp Baird, Goshen Scout Camps, Goshen, Va., 24439.
Walker, Rod (Capt.) -- 1575-A White Drive, Rantoul, Ill., 61866 (217-893-3642).
Zelazny, Monte -- Now back at P.O. Box 1062, Melbourne, Fla., 32901 (305-723-8241).
Sanderson, Rod -- 38 Arty Bde P10, APO 96570.

Replacement Players -- Replacement players are urgently needed for the following
games: PPC (RUSSIA), PRC (GERMANY), PTC (TURKEY), PXC (ITALY), FJF (GONDOR),
DBB (FRANCE), DCA (ITALY), DGA (AUSTRIA-HUNGARY), DHG (TURKEY, ENGLAND), DJI
(FRANCE), PDB (TURKEY), PME (AUSTRIA-HUNGARY, FRANCE), DKJ (AUSTRIA-HUNGARY),
DEE (A & B) (ITALY, RUSSIA). Also, positions may be open in PJC (ENGLAND), PSC
(AUSTRIA-HUNGARY), FKF (ANGMAR), SAA (BREST, LIVERPOOL), DHG (AUSTRIA-HUNGARY,
ITALY), DKJ (ENGLAND). If any of the above positions interest you, contact GM
NLT July 9, and send in next moves, builds, retreats, etc. due for the country
for which you are applying. Player being replaced may apply for same position.

(Cont. page 22)

PAA (Variant-Regular Game #1) -- ITALY TAKES GASCONY, BUT STALEMATE CONTINUES!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 1 and 7.

FALL, 1913 moves --

ENG (Clark) -- F StP(NC) (H); F NAT (H); F Iri-EnC; F EnC-Bre; A Bre-Gas.

GER (Kuch) -- A Fin (S) ENG F StP(NC); F Bal (S) A Ber; A Ber (H); A Kie (S)
A Ber; A Ruh (S) A Bur; A Par-Gas; A Bur (S) A Par-Gas.

ITA (Mebane) -- A Spa-Gas; F Mid (S) A Spa-Gas; F Naf (S) F Mid; F Par (S) F
Mid; A Mar-Bur; A Mun (S) A Mar-Bur; A Boh (S) A Mun; A Tyo (S) A Mun; F Nap (H);
F Lyo (H).

TUR (Huff) -- A Pru-Ber; A Sil (S) A Pru-Ber; A Lvn-StP; A Mos (S) A Lvn-StP;
A War-Pru; F WMe (S) ITA F Mid; A Ukr (H); F Sev (H); A Gal (H); A Bud (H); F Tyn (H).

Supply Centers held at end of FALL, 1913 (no AUTUMN retreats) --

ENG -- Bre, Edi, Lvp, Lon, Nwy, StP (stands pat). (6)

GER -- Bel, Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, Par, Swe (stands pat). (7)

ITA -- Mar, Mun, Nap, Por, Rom, Spa, Tri, Tun, Ven, Vie (stands pat). (10)

TUR -- Ank, Bud, Bul, Con, Gre, Mos, Rum, Ser, Sev, Smy, War (stands pat). (11)

Propaganda --

Constantinople -- The Sultan Allan Alhazred Hashish has taken under advisement the suggestion of the Italian Emperor Mebani, that an honorable peace be sought with the co-belligerent Empires of Germany and England. Communiques are awaited from these powers through the Swiss Embassy. This foolish war must stop.

GM Note -- If the Swiss Embassy (GM) receives comminiques from all four powers (separate comminiques, that is) accepting a draw by July 9, then hostilities will cease and a 4-way draw will be declared. Otherwise, SPRING, 1914 moves are due Jul.16.

Deadline for SPRING, 1914 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

PCA (Variant-Regular Game #3) -- ITALIAN REINFORCEMENTS MOVE UP AS TURKISH GARRISON
IN RUMANIA CONTINUES TO STAND OFF ITALIAN ATTACKS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 1, 2, 8, and 19.

SPRING, 1911 moves --

ENG (Mazor) -- A StP-Mos; F Nwg-NtS; F Bal (C) A Ber-Lvn; A Ber-Lvn; A Kie-Ber;
F Bel-Pic; F EnC (C) A Lon-Bre; A Lon-Bre; A Edi-Yor; F Lvp-Iri; F Mid-Naf; F Por-
Spa(SC); A Mar (H); F Tun (H); F Hol-Kie.

FRA (Huff) -- A Par-Bre.

ITA (Latimer) -- A Tus-Pie; A Mun-Sil; A Boh-Gal; A Tri-Tyo; A Ser (S) A Gal-
Rum; A Bud (S) A Gal-Rum; A Gal-Rum; A Con-Bul; F WMe-Tyn; F Lyo (S) A Tus-Pie; F
Bul(SC)-Aeg; F Aeg-Con; F Smy (S) F Aeg-Con.

TUR (Harrison) -- A Ank-Smy; F Bla (S) A Rum; A Ukr (S) A Rum; A Rum (H); A War-
Mos.

Propaganda --

Turkey -- I think it is remarkable that, in its maiden effort, my computer program for analyzing three-player games has succeeded. No supply centers have been lost, and the enemy has been beaten off. There is little likelihood of the enemy progressing unless England brings in reinforcements. Unfortunately, during the summer I will not be able to use the computer. Therefore I will make the moves, trying to use the same general principles as those employed by the computer. Watch out, Italy. You may relay those astute comments to the enemy.

Deadline for FALL, 1911 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16 (AUT/WINT '11 deadline Jul.30).

PEA (Variant-Regular Game #4) -- RETREATING FRENCH FLEET SMASHED ON ROCKS IN STORM
OFF CAPE WRATH!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 1, 2, 8, and 19.

SUMMER, 1909 retreat -- FRA (Mazor) -- NMR; GM (E) Retreating F Edi.

GM Note -- FALL moves received to date from all but Naus.

Deadline for FALL, 1909 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (AUT/WINT '09 deadline Jul.23).

PFC (Regular Diplomacy Game #1) -- BATTERED ENGLISH NORTH SEA FLEET PUTS INTO EDINBURGH FOR REPAIRS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 1, 2, 8, 14, 18, and 22.

SUMMER, 1908 retreat -- ENG (Gemignani): F NtS (R) Edi.

GM Note -- FALL moves received to date from all but Gemignani & Schelz.

Deadline for FALL, 1908 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (AUT/WINT '08 deadline Jul.23).

PHC (Regular Diplomacy Game #2) -- FIERCE NAVAL BATTLE IN TYRRHENIAN AS MAJOR POWERS MANEUVER FOR ALL-OUT FIGHT!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 2, 5, 11, 14, and 18.

FALL, 1908 moves --

ENG (Hoheisel) -- A Wal-Bre; F EnC (C) A Wal-Bre; A Yor-Hol; F NtS (C) A Yor-Hol; F Bel (H); A Ruh (S) FRA A Mun; A Den (H); F Bot-StP(SC); A Lvn-Ber (D (Pru or o.b.)); F Bal (C) A Lvn-Ber.

FRA (Huff) -- A Bur-Par; A Tus-Rom (conflicting order); A Tyo (S) A Mun (A Tyo D (Pie, Tri, o.b.)); A Ven-Rom (D (Apu, Pie, o.b.)); A Tus (S) A Ven-Rom (conflicting order for A Tus); F Tyn-Nap; F Lyo-Tyn; F Tun (S) F Lyo-Tyn; A Mun (S) A Ber-Kie; A Ber-Kie.

ITA (Lebling) -- F Rom (S) TUR F Ion-Tyn; F Nap (S) TUR F Ion-Tyn; A Tri-Ven.

TUR (Greene) -- A Sil-Ber; A Boh (S) A Ven-Tyo; A Vie-Tyo; F Adr (S) ITA A Tri-Ven; A Ser (S) ITA A Tri (ITA A Tri ordered to move); F Ion-Tyn; F Aeg-Ion; F Gre (S) F Aeg-Ion; A Mos (S) A War-Lvn; A War-Lvn; A Gal-War; A Bul-Rum.

Supply Centers held at end of AUTUMN, 1908 (retreats may affect count) --

ENG -- Bel, Den, Edi, Hol, ~~Kie~~, Lvp, Lon, Nwy, StP, Swe, Bre (stands pat).(10)

FRA -- Ber, ~~Bre~~, Mar, Mun, Par, Por, Spa, Tun, ~~Ven~~, Kie (must remove one unit unless A Tyo (R) Tri, in which case stands pat). (8 or 9)

ITA -- Nap, Rom, Tri, Ven (may build one unit unless FRA A Tyo (R) Tri, in which case stands pat; so submit one build order, just in case). (4 or 3)

TUR -- Ank, Bud, Bul, Con, Gre, Mos, Rum, Ser, Sev, Smy, Vie, War (stands pat). (12)

Propaganda --

France -- Turkey: HELP!!

Rome -- At last the French autocracy has been struck the blow that has been long awaited by freedom-loving people everywhere! We applaud the action of the British Empire, and only hope the blow has not come too late to save us. France has only itself to blame.

Deadline for AUTUMN, 1908 retreats (ENG: A Lvn; FRA: A Tyo; A Ven) and WINTER, 1908 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (SPRING '09 deadline July 30).

PIC (Regular Diplomacy Game #3) -- AUSTRIAN, GERMAN MUNITIONS FACTORIES BUSY! ENGLISH SCANDINAVIAN EXPEDITIONARY FORCE DISSOLVED!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 2, 5, and 22. Michael McIntyre will continue to play RUSSIA. We thank Schelz and Halle for their offers.

AUTUMN, 1907 retreat -- ENG (Huff): F Spa(SC) (R) Por.

WINTER, 1907 builds/removals -- A-H (Lebling): (B) A Vie; (B) A Tri; ENG (Huff): (E) A Lvn; (E) F Nwy; (E) F StP(NC); GER (Zelazny): (B) F Kie; (B) A Ber; (B) A Mun; TUR (Naus): (E) F Arm.

Positions at end of WINTER, 1907 -- A-H: A's Vie, Bud, Tri, Ven, Ser, Rum, Sev; F's Tun, Ion, Nap, Gre (11); ENG: F's Por, Wal, Cly (3); GER: A's Spa, Mar, Mun, Bel, Ber, Pru, War, Swe; F's Kie, NtS, Nwg, Edi; A Lvp (13; will be two units short next year); RUS: A Mos (1); TUR: A Bul; F's Con, Smy, Aeg (4).

Propaganda --

England -- Anyone: Yeecchh! Lost again!!

Deadline for SPRING, 1908 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

PJC (Regular Diplomacy Game #4) -- FRENCH NAVAL FORCES WIN BATTLE OF THE IONIAN WITH ITALIAN SUPPORT! RUSSIAN STRENGTH GROWS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 4, 11, and 17. Dave Francis, are you still playing ENGLAND? If so, please let GM know NLT July 9. Anyone interested in possibly taking over ENG please send WINTER removal to GM NLT July 9.

FALL, 1907 moves --

A-H (Huff) -- A Bud (U).
ENG (Francis) -- A Swe (U); F Bar (U); F Den (U).
FRA (Lebling) -- F Tun-Ion; F Tyn (S) F Tun-Ion; A Nwy-Fin; F NtS-Nwy; F Nwg (S) F NtS-Nwy; F EnC-NtS; F Mid-EnC; A Bur-Ruh; A Pic-Bel; A Naf-Tun.
GER (Latimer) -- A Mun (H) (D (Bur, Boh, Ber, Tyo, o.b.)); F Ska-Swe; A Vie-Gal.
ITA (Koning) -- A Ven (S) F Tri; F Nap (S) FRA F Tun-Ion; F Apu (S) FRA F Tun-Ion; F Tri (H).
RUS (Munroe) -- A Ser-Bud; A Gal (S) A Ser-Bud; A Sil-Mun; A Kie (S) A Sil-Mun; A Mos-StP; F Rum (H); F Hol-Bel.
TUR (Bryant) -- F Ion (H) (D (Alb, EMe, o.b.)); F Adr (S) F Ion; F Aeg (S) F Ion; A Gre (H).

Supply Centers held at end of AUTUMN, 1906 (retreats may affect count) --

A-H -- Bud (stands pat). (1)
ENG -- Den, ~~StP~~, Swe (remove one unit). (2)
FRA -- Bel, Bre, Edi, Lvp, Lon, Mar, Nwy, Par, Por, Spa, Tun (pat). (11)
GER -- ~~Vol~~, ~~Wyl~~, Vie (remove two units unless A Mun (R) Ber, in which case only remove one). (1 or 2)
ITA -- Nap, Rom, Tri, Ven (stands pat). (4)
RUS -- Ber, Kie, Mos, Rum, Ser, Sev, War, StP, Hol, Mun (may build three units unless GER A Mun (R) Ber, in which case may only build two units; but submit three build orders anyway, just in case). (10 or 9)
TUR -- Ank, Bul, Con, Gre, Smy (may build one unit, as has only 4 units on board). (5)

Propaganda --

Moscow -- Nutski!!!

Paris -- Again we demand the cessation of all hostilities within the borders of the German Reich, and either the withdrawal of all Russian troops from the territory of the Reich and its associated states or assurances of Russian intentions in the territory of the Reich. Unless these conditions are met, the Republican Army will be forced to intervene. #### Also, let it be known that should the troops of the Russian Empire attack the territory of the Kingdom of Belgium, a state of war between the Russian Empire and the Republic of France will automatically come into being.

GM Note -- Seven game-years and still all seven major powers in the game!! John Koning, isn't this pretty close to some sort of record?

Deadline for AUTUMN, 1907 retreats (GER: A Mun; TUR: F Ion) and WINTER, 1907 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (SPRING '08 deadline July 30).

PKC (Regular Diplomacy Game #5) -- BLIZZARD BURIES RUSSIAN FLEET IN NORTH! TURKISH STRENGTH GROWS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 5, 18, 21, and 22.

AUTUMN, 1906 retreat: RUS (Mazor): NMR; GM (E) Retreating F StP(NC).

WINTER, 1906 builds -- TUR (Naus): (B) F Smy; (B) A Ank.

Positions held at end of WINTER, 1906 -- FRA (Prosnitz): A's Gas, Bur, Tus; F's Yor, Mid, Lyo, Tun, Tyn, Ion (9); GER (Lebling): A's Mun, Sil, Kie, Ber, StP; F's Bal, Bot, Nwy (8 -- will be one unit short next year); ITA (Latimer): A's Pie, Tri, Nap; F Apu (4); RUS: A's Vie, Gal, Pru, Lvn; F Bla (5); TUR: A's Ank, Ser, Bud; F's Smy, Con, Bul(SC), Gre (7).

GM Note -- The German player agrees with, and no one has disputed, our ruling in DPBA #25, so it stands as a precedent, and will be incorporated into the DPMA H-R's.

Deadline for SPRING, 1907 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

PLC (Regular Diplomacy Game #6) -- ITALIAN ARMY IN BURGUNDY THROWS DOWN ARMS AND TAKES TO DRINK!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 7, 14, and 15.
SUMMER, 1906 retreat -- ITA (Haramis): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Bur.
Deadline for FALL, 1906 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (AUT/WINT deadline Jul.23).

PNC (Regular Diplomacy Game #7) -- AUSTRIA ARMS HEAVILY! STRIKES CLOSE ENGLISH MUNITIONS FACTORIES AND SHIPYARDS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 9, 22, and 25. Edi Birsan is now playing FRANCE in place of Glavic; we thank Halle, Johnson, Brannan, and Von Metzke for their offers. Also note that it is Peter, and not Ken, Rosamilia in A-H.

AUTUMN, 1905 retreat -- FRA (Birsan): F Bel (R) EnC.
WINTER, 1905 builds/removals -- A-H (Rosamilia): (B) A Vie; (B) A Bud; (B) F Tri; ENG (Haramis): NMR: stands pat; GER (Naus): (B) A Ber; RUS (Schelz): (E) F Bot; (E) F Bla.

Positions held at end of WINTER, 1905 -- A-H: A's Bul, Rum, Ser, Vie, Bud, Ukr, War, Mos; F's Tri, Con (10 -- one unit short next year); ENG: F's Swe, Ska, Nwg, NtS (4 -- two units short next year); FRA: A's Par, Gas, Mar; F's EnC, Mid (5); GER: A's Bar, Ruh, Bel, Den; F's Hol, Hel (6); ITA (Gemignani): A Tyo; F's Tyn, WMe, Lyo (4); RUS: F Sev (1); TUR (Bischoff): F Ank (1).

Propaganda --

Rome -- The Italian Eye in the Sky Society has noted a great deal of activity by UFO's over Russia. The question is, are they friendly? The Italian Tourist Bureau is braced for an attack. Several Italian film makers are looking into the possibility of making a s-f movie called "Attack on Russia" -- on location.

Deadline for SPRING, 1906 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

POC (Regular Diplomacy Game #8) -- CHANNEL STORM DEVOURS ENTIRE ENGLISH FLEET!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 10, 18, 22, and 23.

AUTUMN, 1904 retreat -- RUS (Lebling): A Ber (R) Pru.
WINTER, 1904 builds/removals -- ENG (Latimer): (E) F EnC; RUS: (B) F StP(NC); other build deferred.

Positions held at end of WINTER, 1904 -- ENG: A Lon; F's Lvp; NtS (3); FRA (Naus): A's Par, Mar, Pic; F's Iri, Wal (5); GER (Huff): A's Bur, Mun, Bel, Kie, Ber; F Den (6); ITA (Prosnitz): A's Pie, Tri, Vie; F's EME, Aeg, Lyo, WMe (7); RUS: A's Bul, Bud, Gal, Sil, Pru; F's Swe, Nwy, StP(NC), Con, Arm (10 -- one unit short next year); TUR (Bischoff): A Smy; F Ank (2).

Deadline for SPRING, 1905 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

PPC (Regular Diplomacy Game #9) -- ANARCHY IN RUSSIA AS ARMY DESERTS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 10, 11, 14, 22, and 25. A replacement player is urgently needed for RUSSIA; if interested, send F'04 moves by Jul.9.

SUMMER, 1904 retreat -- RUS (Open): NMR: GM (E) Retreating A StP.
Deadline for FALL, 1904 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (AUT/WINT deadline Jul.23).

PQC (Regular Diplomacy Game #10) -- EUROPE GIRDS FOR FIFTH YEAR OF WAR!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 12, 22, and 25.

AUTUMN, 1904 retreat -- A-H (Houghton): A Sev (R) Arm; ENG: F Lvp (R) Nat.
WINTER, 1904 builds/removals -- GER (Scholti): (B) A Mun; RUS (Huff): (E) F Bot.

Positions held at end of WINTER, 1904 -- A-H: A's Gal, Rum, Ser, Arm; F Alb (5); ENG (Bischoff): F's Edi, Lvp, Wal (3); FRA (Tretick): A's Bel, Ruh, Cly; F's Bre, EnC, Nat (6); GER: A's Mun, Kie, Pru, War; F's Hol, Swe, Bal (7); ITA (Bryant):

A's Apu, Tun; F's Gre, Ion, Nap (5); RUS (Huff): A's Sev, Mos, Nwy; F Bla (4);
TUR: A's Con, Bul; F's EME, Aeg (4).

Propaganda --

Germany -- France: I'm getting tired of seeing your armies and/or navies on my front. Therefore, Army Munich will participate in my own movement, but now it's west instead of east.

NSG -- Et tu "Brute". Is there no trust? Must there always be a "Fritz" Mule-houser?

Deadline for SPRING, 1905 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

PRC (Regular Diplomacy Game #11) -- ANARCHY IN GERMANY AS LATEST GOVERNMENT COLLAPSES! HEAVY FIGHTING THROUGHOUT EUROPE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 14, 21, and 25. A replacement player is urgently needed for GERMANY; if interested, contact GM NLT July 9.

SPRING, 1904 moves --

A-H (Stokely) -- A Ber (H); A Sil (S) A Vie-Gal; A Vie-Gal; A Bud-Rum; A Ser (S) A Bud-Rum; F Gre-Bul.

ENG (Birsan) -- F EnC-Mid; F Nwg-NtS.

FRA (Scholti) -- F Lvp-Wal; F Mid-EnC; F Mar-Spa(SC); A Ruh (S) A Bel-Hol; A Bel-Hol; A Par-Bur; A Bre (H).

GER (Open) -- A Hol (U); F Hel (U); A Swe (U).

ITA (Tretick) -- A Kie-Ruh; A Mun-Bur; A Tyo-Mun; A Ven-Pie; F Tyn-Lyo; F Ion (S) A-H F Gre (A-H F Gre ordered to move).

RUS (Nemeth; moves made by Stand-by player IAW General Orders on hand with GM, as NMR from Nemeth) -- F Nwy-Swe; F StP(NC)-Nwy; A War-Gal; A Gal-Bud; A Rum (S) A Gal-Bud (A Rum D (Sev or o.b.)); A Mos-Ukr.

TUR (Schelz) -- A Bul (H); A Con (S) A Bul; F Aeg (S) A Bul; F EME-Ion.

Propaganda --

A-H -- Turkey: Austria accepts aggression pact for northeastern expansion.

Italy -- Italy regrets movements (from deep within its internal system) in the direction of a faithful ally. Consider the pressures which would result from unleashing the Bear -- and forgive.

NSG -- Schelz: How long will you last?

NSG -- To Edi, with Love....

The Free World -- Last night, out illustrious leader dreamed a wonderful dream. He said, "I saw visions of Italy attacking Austria-Hungary and annihilating it." Later, his philosopher and prophet agreed that such an action would be impossible, but also that it would be a wonderful sight to behold if it were possible.

Deadline for SUMMER, 1904 retreat (RUS: A Rum) -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (FALL '04 deadline will be July 23).

PSC (Regular Diplomacy Game #12) -- AUSTRIAN, ENGLISH, FRENCH GUNS SILENT! RUSSIA CONTINUES BLITZ ON GERMANY, FOULS UP IN TURKEY!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 14, 18, and 25. Bob Reiter (A-H), are you still in game? If so, notify GM NLT July 9. Replacement wanted, just in case, so if interested in playing A-H in this game, contact GM NLT July 9.

SPRING, 1904 moves --

A-H (B. Reiter?) -- A Vie (U).

ENG (Naus) -- F Iri (U); F EnC (U); A Yor (U).

FRA (Houghton) -- F Bre (U); A Par (U); A Bur (U); F Mar (U); F Tun (U); F NAF (U); A Bel (U) (D (Pic or o.b.)).

GER (Greene) -- A Hol-Bel; A Ruh (S) A Hol-Bel; A Mun-Bur.

ITA (Schelz) -- F Mid-WMe; F Tyn (S) F Mid-WMe; A Tri-Ven; A Pie (S) A Tri-Ven.

RUS (Tretick) -- A Arm-Ank (F in Arm, not A); F Bla (S) A Arm-Ank; A Sev-Arm; A Mos-Ukr; A War-Gal; A Pru-Sil; A Den-Kie; A Ber (S) A Den-Kie; F Swe-Bal.

TUR (Harrison) -- A Con (H); A Gre-Apu; F Ion (C) A Gre-Apu; F Alb-Tri; A Ser (S) F Alb-Tri; F Adr-Ven; A Bud (H).

Propaganda ---

Bonn -- Kaiser Wilhelm II expressed his deep regrets over this whole Peery mess. Willy said, "I must agree with the Pope that a Christian crusade is needed to clean up this Peery mess in East Germany. I think that all 'good' leaders in the Diplo world must now study the distinct possibility that Buddy Tretick is in reality Larry Peery. Also, we must study the degree that Hal Naus is a hired henchman and/or satellite of Larry Peery. Just note his perfidious actions in game after game. What a blood-lust! Yes, fellow rulers, we are faced with a horrible situation: Good losing to Evil." ##### The Kaiser went on to state that, "I feel Mr. Don Miller, the GM, is either Larry Peery in disguise (including the spare tire) or in his pay."

Constantinople (March 19) -- Don't rat, Buddy.

Russia -- Political pressures requiring documentary treaty have insulted the Czar, who seeks to avenge a broken alliance with certain trusting allies.

Russia -- Swift, total mobilization of Red forces brings about quick victory and restoration of peace on the continent. Needless to say, also a top rating.

St. Peeryburg -- The Tsar, Che Peeri, appeared before the gathered court at the Greenebean Patch in his Greene and Paiseley Bermudas to once again extoll the virtues of Law and Order, Motherhood, the Constitution, the Bill of Rights, negroes (sic), apple pie, the Republican Party, peaceful protest through constitutional provisions (particularly the courts), while being against riots, intimidation, violence, "or anything else". ##### Upon completion of the Tsar's eulogy, the captive Herzog Greene turned to one of his guards and remarked, "Makes one almost wish he was in Australia. Oh well...."

Deadline for SUMMER, 1904 retreat (FRA: A Bel) -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (FALL, 1904 deadline will be July 23).

PTC (Regular Diplomacy Game #13) -- ANARCHY IN TURKEY! FRENCH ATTACKS ON ENGLAND, GERMAN ASSAULTS ON AUSTRIA CONTINUE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 7 and 25. Replacement player is urgently needed to replace Bob Reiter in TURKEY; if interested, contact GM NLT July 9. Bob Reiter may reapply for same position if he promises to stop missing moves.

SPRING, 1903 moves --

- A-H (D. Reiter) -- A Bud (S) A Ser-Tri (A); A Ser-Tri (A); A Rum (S) A Bud.
- ENG (Tretick) -- A Lon (H); F Nwy-Ska; F NtS-Hel; F Yor-NtS.
- FRA (Zelazny) -- A Spa-Gas; A Bel (H); A Bre-Wal; F Mid-Nat; F EnC (C) A Bre-Wal; F Iri (S) A Bre-Wal.
- GER (Halle) -- A Mun-Boh; A Tyo (H); A Vie (S) A Gal-Bud; A Gal-Bud; A Den (H); F Hol-NtS.
- ITA (Maloney) -- A Nap-Smy; F Ion (C) A Nap-Smy; F EMe (C) A Nap-Smy; A Gre-Ser; A Alb (S) A Gre-Ser; F Tri (H).
- RUS (Houghton) -- F StP(NC)-Nwy; F Swe (S) F StP(NC)-Nwy; A Mos-Sev; A Ukr-Rum.
- TUR (Open) -- A Sev (U); A Bul (U); F Bla (U); F Aeg (U).

Propaganda --

England -- England requests the removal of certain pressures from English waters, and calls upon its German allies to invade this aggressor's territory.

Deadline for FALL, 1904 moves (no SUM retreats) -- Noon, Tues., July 16 (AUT/WINT '04 deadline July 30).

PUC (Regular Diplomacy Game #14) -- RETREATING ITALIAN ARMY GETS LOST IN DARK AND DROWNS IN ADRIATIC!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 18 and 20.

SUMMER, 1902 retreat -- ITA (Duffy): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Tri.

Propaganda --

Germany -- France: Have you ever noticed the cause of our troubles? Not only is Russia in this group, but also England. Let us wait and catch some real big fish. We can work something out. I'll let you have Holland if you let me have Belgium.

GM Note -- FALL moves on hand for all but Gemignani, Duffy, and Sanderson.
Deadline for FALL, 1902 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16 (AUT/WINT '02 deadline Jul.30).

PVC (Regular Diplomacy Game #15) -- GERMANY GROWS WHILE ENGLAND RUNS INTO SERIOUS MANPOWER SHORTAGE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 18 and 25. Note that Doug Beyerlein will be playing FRANCE in place of Hueston, eff. SPRING, 1903.

AUTUMN, 1902 retreat -- ENG (B. Reiter?): NMR; GM (E) Retreating F Swe.

WINTER, 1902 builds -- ENG: NMR; stands pat; FRA (Hueston; Beyerlein, eff. SPR '03): (B) A Par; GER (Schelz): (B) F Kie; (B) F Ber; (B) A Mun; RUS (Tretick): (B) A War.

Positions held at end of WINTER, 1902 -- A-H (Harrison): A's Tri, Bud, Ser; F's Ion, Gre (5); ENG: A Bre; F EnC (2 -- two units short next year); FRA: A's Par, Mar; F Spa(SC) (3 -- one unit short next year); GER: A's Bel, Mun, Swe; F's Kie, Ber, NtS, Bal (7); ITA (Halle): A's Pie, Ven; F's WMe, Tyn (4); RUS: A's War, Sev, StP; F's Bot, Rum (5); TUR (D. Reiter): A's Bul, Con; F's Bla, Smy (4).

Propaganda --

Berlin -- Vienna: Let's put it this way: If any foreign troops enter Tyrolia or Bohemia, some army commanders might forget treaties. The German High Command sees no reason, except a hostile one, for any Austrian units to enter these areas. We are sorry if the signatories take offense at this attitude, but as they well know, our southern troops are a little jumpy.

Berlin -- Moscow: Thanks for the unexpected help, but it wasn't really necessary. There are greener and warmer lands to the south.

G'ville -- Steve, do you ever have an ally? But remember, you started it here.

Rome -- King Eduardo I today affirmed what has been common knowledge in European diplomatic circles since the winter of 1901 -- namely, that a state of peace exists between the Italian Empire and the Council of Vienna. ##### It was agreed that the two states shall maintain garrisons in their adjoining provincial centers as a safeguard against treachery. Full and total cooperation was pledged by the Italian Empire in assisting the campaign against the Turkish infidels.

NSG -- Don't fight, fellas!

GM Note -- Bob Reiter, are you still in game? If so, let GM know NLT July 9. Anyone wanting to play ENGLAND in case Bob is out contact GM NLT July 9.

Error in DIPLOPHOBIA #25 -- Under "Supply Centers held . . .", opposite GER, add "Swe", change "two" to "three", and change "(6)" to "(7)".

Deadline for SPRING, 1903 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

PWC (Regular Diplomacy Game #16) -- GERMANY, ITALY, RUSSIA CONTINUE ARMS RACE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #18.

AUTUMN, 1902 retreat -- A-H (Huff): (E) Retreating A Vie. A-H: (E) F Alb.

WINTER, 1902 builds -- GER (Brooks): (B) A Ber; (B) F Kie; ITA (Leitch): (B) A Ven; RUS (Turner): (B) A War; (B) A Mos; (B) A StP(SC); TUR (Naus): (B) A Smy.

Positions at end of WINTER, 1902 -- A-H: A Ser (1); ENG (Gemignani): A Pic; F's Den, Iri, EnC (4); FRA (Prosnitz): A's Bre, Par, Bur; F's Mid, Nat (5); GER: A's Mun, Ruh, Ber, Swe; F's Bel, Kie (6); ITA: A's Ven, Tri, Vie, Boh; F's Adr, Ion (6); RUS: A's Rum, Bud, War, Mos; F's Nwy, StP(SC), Sev (7); TUR: A's Bul, Gre; F's Con, Aeg; A Smy (5).

Propaganda --

Austria -- I hate to play Austria. This happens every time!

Deadline for SPRING, 1903 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

PXC (Regular Diplomacy Game #17) -- GERMANY INVADES RUSSIA AS GERMANY, RUSSIA, TURKEY SCORE BIG GAINS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #20. Replacement player is urgently needed for Ogle (in ITALY); if interested, contact GM NLT July 9.

FALL, 1902 moves --

A-H (Mazor) -- A Tri (U) (D (Tyo, Alb, o.b.)); A Vie (U).
 ENG (Bischoff) -- A Nwy-StP; F NtS-Hel; F Nwg-Nwy; F Edi-Nwg.
 FRA (Zumstein) -- F Spa(SC)-Lyo; F Mid-WMe; A Mar-Pie; A Par (U); A Gas (U).
 GER (D. Reiter) -- A Ruh-Mun; A Sil-War; A Pru-Lvn; A Den (S) F Bal-Swe; F Bal-Swe; F Bel-Hol.
 ITA (Open) -- A Pie (U); A Ven (U); F Tun (U).
 RUS (Price) -- F Bla-Ank; A Bud-Tri; A Fin-StP; F Swe-Nwy (D (Ska, Bot, o.b.)).
 TUR (Hueston) -- F Ion-Nap; F EMe-Ion; A Ser (S) RUS A Bud-Tri; A Bul-Gre.

Supply Centers held at end of AUTUMN, 1902 (retreats do not affect count) --

A-H -- ~~Ty~~, Vie (remove one unit). (1)
 ENG -- Edi, Lvp, Lon, Nwy (stands pat). (4)
 FRA -- Bre, Mar, Par, Por, Spa (stands pat). (5)
 GER -- Bel, Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, Mun, Swe, War (may build two units). (8)
 ITA -- ~~Map~~, Rom, Tun, Ven (stands pat; only 3 units on board). (3)
 RUS -- Bud, Mos, Rum, StP, Sev, ~~Swe~~, ~~War~~, Tri, Ank (may build three units, as currently has only four units on board). (7)
 TUR -- ~~Ykk~~, Bul, Con, Smy, Nap, Gre, Ser (may build two units). (6)

Propaganda --

London -- World: Because of internal difficulties, our forces have remained stationary for two seasons. However, we are glad to announce that the problems have been straightened out and the WAR WILL CONTINUE.

Deadline for AUTUMN, 1902 retreats (A-H: A Tri; RUS: F Swe) and WINTER, 1902 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9. (SPRING 1903 deadline will be July 30)

PYC (Regular Diplomacy Game #18) -- FIGHTING CONTINUES ON ALL FRONTS AS WAR ENTERS SECOND YEAR IN EUROPE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 20 and 25.

SPRING, 1902 moves --

A-H (Scholti) -- A Vie (H); A Tri-Bud; F Alb-Gre.
 ENG (Rosamilia) -- A Nwy-Den; F NtS (C) A Nwy-Den; F Bel-EnC; F Lon (S) F Bel-EnC; F Lvp-Iri.
 FRA (Nemeth; NMR, but moves made by Stand-by player IAW General Orders on file with GM) -- A Spa-Por; F Mid-EnC; A Pic (S) A Par-Bur; A Par-Bur.
 GER (Tretick) -- A Ruh-Mun; F Den-NtS (D (Bal, Hel, Ska, Kie, o.b.)).
 ITA (D. Reiter) -- A Mun (S) GER A Ruh-Kie (GER A Ruh not so ordered); A Ven-Tyo; A Rom-Ven; F Tun (S) F Nap-Ion; F Nap-Ion.
 RUS (B. Johnson) -- F Swe (S) ENG A Nwy-Den; F Rum-Bla; A Sev-Rum; A Gal-Vie; A War-Sil; A Ber (H); A Mos-War.
 TUR (Levinson) -- F Smy-EMe; F Con-Ion (impossible); A Bul-Ser; A Gre (S) A Bul-Ser; A Ank-Con.

SUMMER, 1902 retreat -- GER (Tretick): F Den (R) Kie.

Propaganda --

A-H -- I will fight valiantly to the end with what loyal forces I have left! I will my country to my ally (?), whomever he may be. (You conniving slob!) I wish that my body be buried in Braunau. Braunau is a very beautiful village this time of year, just as it was in 1889. Afterwards, however, Braunau became the site of tyranny. Tyranny will return, be it Russian peasants, Ottoman Turks, or Italian wops, to this lovely town soon. May it rest in peace.

Bucharest -- There is fighting in the streets here as the common people of Rumania rise up against the scurrilous Russian invaders. The situation is in doubt -- especially since it is understood that other major powers intend to come to the aid of the Rumanian people -- but who are these other powers?

Germany -- Germany requests Red Cross aid from Russia, England, Italy, and France, in hopes of somehow establishing neutrality.

Novgorod -- The Tsar of Holy Russia is in a fury because of certain news reports from Warsaw that attributed certain statements to him. He has said, "Such rubbish!"

10
What means Ohio, anyway? Any statements made by me will be issued here in 450-room Spring dacha or in my humble palace in St. Petersburg. Now where is that crazy clown, Rasputin? My wife will be entertained."

Sao Paulo -- Rumors have been flying in this neutral port. The rumor gaining most attention is about the aims of the Russians. It is said that Russia intends to obtain its Mediterranean ports, and that the czar is talking about that "sick man, that very sick man".

Deadline for FALL, 1902 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16 (AUT/WINT '02 deadline Jul.30).

PZC (Regular Diplomacy Game #19) --- ENGLAND, GERMANY, RUSSIA LOSE GROUND IN ARMS
RACE WHILE FRANCE, ITALY PULL AHEAD!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOPHOBIA #'s 22 and 25.

WINTER, 1901 builds -- A-H (Gemignani): (B) A Vie; FRA (D. Reiter): (B) F Bre; (B) A Par; (B) A Mar; GER (Bischoff): NMR; stands pat; ITA (Houghton): (B) A Ven; (B) F Nap; RUS (Haramis): NMR; stands pat; TUR (B. Johnson): (B) F Con.

Positions at end of WINTER, 1901 -- A-H: A's Ser, Bud, Vie; F Gre (4); ENG (Greene): A Yor; F's EnC, NtS (3); FRA: A's Spa, Mar, Par, Bel; F's Bre, Por (6); GER: A's Bur, Kie; F Hol (3 -- one unit short next year); ITA: A's Tyo, Tri, Ven; F's Tun, Nap (5); RUS: A's Gal, Ukr; F's Rum, Swe (4 -- two units short next year); TUR: A's Arm, Bul; F's Bla, Con (4).

Propaganda --

Austria -- Germany: Freddy isn't the only one out of his tree in this game. I am impressed by anyone who rakes leaves up in the trees. That shows foresight. Freddy was early for Fall.

Austria -- Austria wishes to announce her long-lasting friendship to Turkey.

Austria -- Italy: I'd. get back in my tree and out of Trieste or I'll see you in Venice next season.

Budapest -- Who is kidding whom? The Hungarians remain loyal to Hungary.

Constantinople -- A new government has been formed with a new constitution.

The Young Turks now control all governmental processes. Their leader, M. Kemal, has asked all nations to disregard previous actions and statements of the Turkish governmental organization, because a new policy of co-existence is to be tried. Is anyone interested?

Kiev -- The Czar says he is a sick man. It is not quite understood who that sick man is. The Prince of Gorinsk claims that the Dual Monarchy is a friend of Slavic peoples and intends to advise the Tsar to give his aid to that conglomerate nation. One would think he has certain designs on Princess Margaret of Alford.

Westminster -- With the death of "Vicky", the greatest days of the English Empire faded into the past. Yet, as Edward VII took his Coronation Oath many present felt that a new age was dawning. The Duke of Greenwich was asked after the Coronation just what the Government's policy would be. The head of the Liberal Party in the House of Lords replied, "Our party expects to take over from Salisbury's Government after the elections this spring. When this takes place you can depend upon three things: (1) Home Rule; (2) anti-Imperialistic and anti-Limp; (3) anti-Peery. #### "Unfortunately, the late Queen and the present Conservative Government failed to recognize this monstrous tyranny. Our Government feels that Peeryism in its worst forms are present in Europe now. Wherever it must be it must be smashed or else this blight will overcome us all. #### "Leaders of Europe, I appeal to your good sense. If any of you feel at any time your mind being clouded with dark thoughts, then the insidious threat of Peeryism is knocking at your door. Peery is present. He must be discovered."

Deadline for SPRING, 1902 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16.

Issue Number 22 -- Postal Diplomacy Games FAA(1966Be), FBB(1966Fi), FEC(1966Lk),
FJF(1966Tt), FKF(1966Act) - - - - - This is WAR??

FAA (Middle-Earth Diplomacy II) -- RHOVANION IS NO MORE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See FANTASIA #'s 1 and 7.

HRIVE, 3008 retreat -- RHOVANION (Clark): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Mirkwood.

COIRE, 3008 build -- GONDOR (Huff): (B) A Minas Tirith.

Positions at end of COIRE, 3008 -- ARNOR (Hoheisel): A's Har, Bra, Iml, Var, Ang (5); GON: A's Isen, MiT, Ano, Hen, Udu, Dag, Wil, Esg, NoW, Mir, Frd, Lun (12); RHO: None; OOG; ROHAN (Mebane): A's Rau, Bro, Cel, Lor, DoG, Gla, Mis, Ere, Tha, Dun, Ene (11).

Deadline for TUILLE, 3009 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 9.

FBB (Mythomacy II) -- LEMURIAN POWER GROWS! NEW EREHWON RULER OFFERS AID TO MU, GAILLARDIA IN THEIR STRUGGLE AGAINST LEMURIA!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See FANTASIA #'s 1, 3, 9, 11, 15, 17, and 21.

AUTUMN, 1906 retreat -- GAILLARDIA (Lebling): A Wornug(21) (R) Amtor(15).

WINTER, 1906 builds -- LEMURIA (Huff): (B) F Shaver City(50); (B) F Palmerton(57); (B) A Byrne(62).

Positions at end of WINTER, 1906 -- EREHWON (Boskey): A's 40, 45, 37, 42 (4); GAI: A's 33, 34, 38, 31, 12, 15; F's d, 25, f, b, a, 46 (12); LEM: A's 43, 49, 50, 62, 22; F's e, 57, h, 48, 47, 21 (11 -- 1 unit short next year); MU (Gemignani): A's 9, 20; F 16 (3).

Error in FANTASIA #21 -- Under "Supply Centers held . . .", opp. LEM, delete "45"; change "(13)" to "(12)", and change "(build three)" to "(may build three units; only 8 units are on board, but only has 3 open home supply centers)".

GM Notes -- SPRING moves on hand from all players but Huff.

Propaganda --

Troll -- The Erehwon government-in-exile reaffirms its desire to cooperate with the great state of Gaillardia in driving the Lemurian invaders into the sea.

Troll -- The Erehwon government-in-exile commends the stand of Mu in opposing the effort by the Lemurian Reich to suppress its smaller neighbor and offers a firm pact of mutual assistance.

Earth II -- Hold hard, Gaillardia. Our troops will come to your aid as soon as we are able to rediscover the transporter that was destroyed by the evil Lemurian forces during their retreat on this world.

Deadline for SPRING, 1907 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 9.

FEC (Mordor Versus the World I, #3) -- GONDOR CONTINUES TO GAIN AS NEW RULERS TAKE OVER IN ARNOR, RHOVANION, ROHAN!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See FANTASIA #'s 1, 3, 9, 11, 15, 17, and 21.

QUELLE, 3006 moves --

ARNOR (Boskey) -- DA Mirkwood-N. Wilderlands; SA Esgaroth (S) DA Mir-Now; A Misty Mtns-Gladden; A Imladris (w/Ring)-Misty Mtns; A Amon Sul-Imladris; A Lorien (S) A Fangorn (conflicting order); A Lorien (H) (conflicting order); A Fangorn (S) A Lorien (conflicting order); A Fangorn (H) (conflicting order); A Eregion-Moria (D (Dunland or o.b.)); A Tharbad (H).

GONDOR (Huff) -- SA Isengard (H); SA W. Emnet (S) SA Rauros; SA Rauros (S) DA Henneth Annun; SA Anorien (S) DA Hen; SA Minas Tirith (S) DA Hen; SA Poros (S) DA Hen; DA Henneth Annun (S) SA Minas Morgul-Udun; SA Minas Morgul-Udun; SA Nurnen Wastelands-Barad-dur.

MORDOR (Gemignani) -- TA Udun-Henneth Annun; DA Dead Marshes (S) TA Udu-Hen; DA Dol Guldur-Lorien.

RHOVANION (Bischoff) -- DA Celebrant-Lorien; SA Brown Lands-Celebrant (no SA Bro).

ROHAN (Bischoff) -- DA Moria-Eregion; SA E. Emnet-Fangorn (no SA EEm); SA Isen-Enedwaith.

- Supply Centers held at end of HRIVE, 3006 (retreat does not affect count) --
- ARN -- ~~Amo~~, Ang, Car, ~~Esg~~, Fan, Iml, Lor, Tha, ThS, NoW (may build two units, as there are now only eight units on board). (10)
 - GON -- Ano, DoA, Edo, Hen, Leb, MiM, MiT, SoG, ~~WdA~~, WEm, Rau, Isg, Bar (may build two units). (12)
 - MOR -- ~~Bar~~, Dag, DoG, ~~NoW~~, Wil, Dea, Udu (stands pat; is two units short, with only 3 units now on board, but has no open home supply centers). (5)
 - RHO -- ~~Dea~~, Cel (stands pat; only one unit currently on board). (1)
 - ROH -- Isg, Mor, ~~Kan~~, Ere (stands pat; only one unit now on board). (2)

Deadline for HRIVE, 3006 retreat (ARN: A Ere) and COIRE, 3006 builds -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (TUILLE, 3007 deadline July 30).

Propaganda (Cope! almost forgot...) --

The Shire -- Rhovanion-Rohan: Let us sweep the Southernmen before us in their doom. As you will note, my attack on Moria is by a SA unsupported, and is merely to protect against your forgetting who is the real enemy.

FJF (Middle-Earth Diplomacy IV, #1) -- RHOVANION NEARS VICTORY AS ANGMAR DISAPPEARS FROM ROLLS OF NATIONS IN MIDDLE-EARTH IV!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See FANTASIA #'s 3, 6, 10, 15, and 21. Replacement player still needed for D. Miller in GONDOR; if interested, contact GM NLT July 9.

- QUELLE, TA 1906 moves --
- ANGMAR (Brooks) -- No units on board.
 - ARNOR (Gemignani) -- A Arthedain (H); A Cardolan (H) (D (Weather Hills, The Shire, Harlindon, Minhiriath, o.b.)); A Ettenmoors (H) (D (Weather Hills or o.b.)).
 - GONDOR (D. Miller) -- A Bel (S) MORDOR S Lebennin.
 - HARAD (Bischoff) -- A Tolfalas-Lebennin; A Anorien (S) A Tol-Anorien (impossible) (A Ano D (Calenardhon, South Ithilien, o.b.)); A Far Harad-Near Harad; F Bay of Bel-Umbar; F Grey Havens (H).
 - MORDOR (Mebane) -- A Eryn Muil-Anorien; A Ithilien (S) A EmM-Ano; A Lebennin (S) A EmM-Ano; A Harondor (S) A Lebennin; A Ephel Duath (S) A Harondor; A Near Harad-Umbar; A Khand-Near Harad.
 - RHOVANION (Huff) -- A Forodwaith-Arthedain; A Gundabad-Ettenmoors; A Carn-Dum (S) A Gundabad-Ettenmoors; A Rhudaur-Cardolan; A Eregion (S) A Rhu-Crd; A Imladris-Rhudaur; A Carrock (S) A Iml-Rhd; A Lorien (H); A Gladden-Imladris; A N. Mirkwood-Gundabad; A Mirkwood-Gladden.

- Supply Centers held at end of HRIVE, TA 1906 (retreats do not affect count) --
- ANG -- ~~CaD~~ (no units on board to remove; OCG). (0)
 - ARN -- ~~Art~~, ~~Art~~, ~~Art~~, ThS, Art (remove one unit; only 3 now on board). (2)
 - GON -- Bel (stands pat). (1)
 - HAR -- ~~Art~~, ~~Art~~, Far, ~~Leb~~, Umb, GrH (remove two units). (3)
 - MOR -- Bar, Gor, Ith, Kha, Hrd, Nea, Udu, Ano, Leb (may build two units). (9)
 - RHO -- DoG, Esg, Fan, Gun, Iml, Lor, Mir, Mor, NoM, Rhn, Wil, CaD, Crd, Rhd (may build three units). (14)

GM Note -- Remember, Victory Criterion is 15 units on board at end of COIRE season. Deadline for HRIVE, TA 1906 retreats (ARN: A Crd, A Ett) and COIRE, TA 1906 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (TUILLE, TA 1907 deadline July 30).

FKF (Middle-Earth Diplomacy IV, #2) -- RHOVANION SCORES HEAVY GAINS AS OTHER POWERS CONTINUE TO FIGHT AMONG THEMSELVES!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See FANTASIA #'s 3 and 6. Harry Manogg (ANGMAR), are you still in game? If so, please let GM know NLT July 9. Anyone interested in taking over ANGMAR in case Harry is out please send in COIRE removal(s) and HRIVE retreat NLT July 9; if you contact GM, Harry, please include HRIVE & COIRE orders.

- QUELLE, TA 1906 moves --
- ANGMAR (Manogg?) -- A Imladris (U) (D (Rhudaur or o.b.)); A Ettenmoors (U); A Forodwaith (U) (D (Carn Dum or o.b.)).

ARNOR (Carey) -- A Cardolan-Minhiriath; A The Shire-Cardolan; A Grey Havens-Arthedain; A Rhudaur-Weather Hills.
 GONDOR (Gemignani) -- A Anorien-Calenardhon; A Lebennin-Belfalas.
 HARAD (Walker) -- A Dagorlad-Wilderland; F The Western Sea-Enedwaith; A Khand (H); A Near Harad-Ephel Duath; A Harondor-Lebennin; A Calenardhon-Celebrant.
 MORDOR (Huff) -- A Ithilien (S) A Udun; A Udun (S) A Nurn-Barad-Dur; A Nurn-BaD.
 RHOVANION (Hoheisel) -- A Grey Mtns-Forodwaith; A Gundabad (S) A GrM-Frd; A Gladden-Imladris; A Eregion (S) A Gla-Iml; A Fangorn (H); A Eryn Muil-Wilderlands.

Supply Centers held at end of HRIVE, TA 1906 (retreats may affect count) --
 ANG -- ~~Art~~, ~~CaD~~, ~~Lvl~~ (remove two units, unless A Iml (R) Rhd, in which case only remove one). (1 or 2)
 ARN -- Crd, GrH, Rhd, ThS, Art (may build one unit, unless ANG A Iml (R) Rhd, in which case stands pat; so send in one build, just in case). (5 or 4)
 GON -- Ano, ~~Fan~~, ~~Vob~~, Bel (stands pat). (2)
 HAR -- ~~Bar~~, ~~Bel~~, Far, Hrd, Nea, Umb, Leb, Kha (stands pat). (6)
 MOR -- Gor, Ith, ~~Kha~~, Bar, Udu (may build one unit). (4)
 RHO -- DoG, Esg, Gun, Lor, Mir, Mor, NoM, Rhn, ~~Vob~~, Wil, Iml, Fan (may build three units; has only 6 units on board, but only has 3 open home s.c.'s). (11)

Propaganda --
Gondor -- Gondor's palace is buzzing with the news of the Lady of Gondor's forthcoming marriage to His Highness Yadtsid V ab-Zaydath-Alla's son and heir Zaydath-'Alla as agreed in a marriage contract between the Steward of Gondor for his daughter and the father of Zaydath-'Alla, the beloved and lamented Yadtsed V. The punishment of Rhovanion by all powers of Middle-Earth is also in progress.

Mirkwood -- Harad: This new ruler better not get out of hand -- Mordor is growing!

Mirkwood -- The Shire: Move south and there will be no war between us.

Umbar -- His Imperial Majesty, Empery Zaydath-'Alla VIII, has reversed the foreign policy of Harad, declaring alliance with Arnor and Mordor, and war upon the perfidious state of Rhovanion. "The King of the wood-elves," said His Majesty, "has proved himself faithless and untrustworthy. He was very well aware of the fact that one of the terms of Our alliance with him was his alliance with Angmar. This term he has repeatedly broken; therefore, we of the Haradrim can no longer regard the pledged word of Wayne Oath-Breaker as being worth even so much as its weight in orc-dung. As a result, We are renewing Our alliance with the Dark Lord of Barad-Dur, who may be nasty and evil and red-eyed, but at least he's honest. In consequence, also, we must contract friendship with the King of Arnor, requesting only that he cooperate with the Witch-King of Angmar in bringing to heel the overwhelming force of the Traitor of Mirkwood. As a sign of Our good will, We are returning to the Dark Lord his castle of Barad-Dur, completely rebuilt and refurbished, with newly-cast gates of mithril, new dungeons of the dankest stone, and hordes and hordes of loyal hungry orcs.. They are hungry, primarily for elf-meat. We know where they can find plenty, just a wee bit north. Additionally, we call upon the Lady of Gondor to join in the Crusade against the Forsworn One of the North. Middle-Earth, unite -- you have nothing to lose but 11 treacherous armies; you have nothing to gain but 11 fat supply centers. Die, Rhovanion, die, die!!!"

Deadline for HRIVE, TA 1906 retreats (ANG: A Iml; A Frd) and COIRE, TA 1906 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (TUILLE, TA 1907 deadline will be July 30).

H Y S T E R I A

Issue Number 4 -- Postal Diplomacy Games FHD(1966Rr), FIE(1966Ss) -- Hoot-toot!!!!

FHD (Indianomacy II, #1) -- APACHES PULL AHEAD! BLACKFOOT AND DAKOTA NATIONS ARE OVERRUN!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See FANTASIA #'s 2,3,6,9, & 15, and HYSTERIA #2.

FALL, 1606 moves --

APACHE (Lebling) -- W Pawnee(80) (S) SHOSHONI W Northern Cheyenne(48)-Teton Sioux(49); W 106(Tonkawa) (S) W Caddo(110); W Waco(108) (S) W110; W Atakapa(111) (S) W110; W Wichita(109)-Osage(74); W Illinois(71) (S) W 109-74; W Comanche(82)-Wichita (109); W Kiowa(81) (S) W 82-109; W Caddo(110) (S) W 82-109; W Taos(83)-Navaho(87).

BLACKFOOT (Open) -- W Blackfeet(26) (U) (D (2 or o.b.)); W Hidatsa(22) (U) (A).

DAKOTA (Bischoff) -- W Yanktoni (51)-Yankton Sioux(50); W Teton Sioux(49) (S) W Yanktoni(51)-Yankton Sioux(50) (W49 is (A)).

ILLINOIS (Gemignani) -- W Sauk and Fox(57)-Peoria(70); W Osage(74)-Illinois(71) (D (Missouri(73), Shawnee(67), o.b.)); W Kansa(76)-Wichita(109); W Yankton Sioux (50)-Teton Sioux(49); W Santee(54)-Yanktoni(51).

IROQUOIS (D. Miller) -- W Cree(3)-Chippewa(18); W Plains Ojibwa(19)-Hidatsa(22); W Assinboine(21) (S) W 19-22; W Mandan(23) (S) W 24-49; W Arikara(24)-Teton Sioux(49); W Sisseton(52)-Chippewa(18); W/c Lake Huron(f)-Lake Michigan(e); W Huron(15)-Potawatomi(58); W/c Pamunkey(62)-Powhatan(63).

MUSKHOGEAN (Huff) -- W Quapaw(75)-Caddo(110); W Chickasaw(114)-Quapaw(75); W Choctaw(113) (S) W 75-110; W Natchez(112) (S) W 75-110; W Powhatan(63) (H).

SHOSHONI (Carey) -- W Cayuse(38)-Yakima(37); W Kutenai(33)-Blackfeet(26); W Blood(27) (S) W 33-26; W Atsina(25) (H); W Northern Cheyenne(48)-Teton Sioux(49); W Crow(29) (S) W 48-49; W Piute(88) (H); W Bannock(31) (S) W Crow(29).

Supply Centers held at end of AUTUMN, 1606 (retreats do not affect count) --

- APA -- 80, 82, 83, 87, 97, 96, 99, 101, 108, 109, 110, 71, 74 (43). (13)
- BLA -- ~~71~~, ~~76~~ (remove one unit; one was dest. F '06; OOG). (0)
- DAK -- ~~48~~, ~~50~~ (remove one unit; one was dest. F '06; OOG). (0)
- ILL -- 54, 56, 69, 70, ~~71~~, ~~74~~, 50 (remove one unit). (5)
- IRO -- 3, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 18, 52, 61, 21 (may build one unit). (10)
- MUS -- 64, 66, ~~71~~, 113, 114, 115 (stands pat; one was dest. Spr '06). (5)
- SHO -- 27, 28, 29, 38, 44, 45, 47, 88, 26, 49 (may build two units). (10)

Propaganda --

Apache -- Shoshoni: Do not worry about the move to Navaho. It is defensive in nature.

Madrid -- ". . . and in addition to much gold and other divers riches, I bring slaves from the land of Misipa and Miami, brought to us by your majesty's allies in the New World, the Apaches, and their southern neighbors, the Aztec, to whose Montezuma your highness's aid has at last restored his throne...." -- from a letter to King Philip III by Mendez de Aviles, governor of the West Indies.

Miami -- Illinois promise many scalps to show our Iroquois brothers what Illinois do to Apache thieves. No more will Apache creep like jackels upon Muskogean and Illinois. Even the Ghosts are against Apaches, for the spirit of Fill-a-lot appeared in the camps of the Apaches! Many died then and many will die now. No Muskogean, or Caddo, or Illinois will serve the Apache women who pass themselves off as braves. Weeping is heard in the tents of the Apache.

San Carlos -- Fools of the east, know that the Apache are invincible. They and their allies, the men of the northern mountains, cannot be turned back. The craven Iroquois, safe in the forests of their cold homeland are no match for us. You know of the prowess of the Illinois and Muskogean. Our allies show the mettle of the Blackfeet. Who is worth the notice of the Western tribes?

Broken Land -- The Great Chief Haiienthwatha reported to the Council of 50 that Iroquois war parties are poised on the borders of our brothers, the Illinois, to aid the courageous but out-numbered Princess Winna fight off the Apache invaders, should a request for such help be forthcoming. He also stated that help would shortly be on the way for our hard-pressed allies, the Muskogean. Runners were sent to the Princess and to Chief Beer-Belly of the Muskogean relaying Haiienthwatha's words.

The Council also discussed with Haiienthwatha the growing danger presented to the tribes of the northern woodlands by the massing Shoshoni warriors in the conquered Blackfoot territory. Runners were sent to the great Shoshoni Chief requesting clarification of the intentions of the Shoshoni, and an alliance to turn back the ever-growing Apache menace. #### Death to the enemies of the Ongwanosionni! Long live Great Chief Haiienthwatha! All hail the Iroquois Confederacy! Hai! Hai! Hai! Hai! Hai! Aiiiiiiiiiyyyyyyyyyeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee!!!!!!

Deadline for AUTUMN, 1906 retreats (BLA: W 26; ILL: W 74) and WINTER, 1906 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (SPRING, 1907 deadline will be July 30).

FIE (Game of the Clans) -- FRASER, KEITH BANDS DISAPPEAR IN WILDS OF SCOTTISH HIGHLANDS! SEARCHERS FIND NO TRACE, GIVE UP HOPE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See FANTASIA #'s 3-6, 11, and 15.
AUTUMN, 1495 retreats -- FRASER (Gemignani): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Roy Castle (42); KEITH (Hoheisel): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Edzell Castle(37).

- Supply Centers held at end of AUTUMN, 1495 --
- FRASER -- 16, 25, 26, 27, 32, 33, 34, 39, ~~42~~, 24 (may build one unit; has only 6 units on board, but has only one open home supply center). (9)
- GORDON (Huff) -- ~~24~~ (no units on board; OOG). (0)
- GRAHAM (Lebling) -- ~~30~~ (no units on board; OOG). (0)
- KEITH -- 2, 3, 4, 5, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 36, ~~47~~ (stands pat; one was dest. AUT '95). (11)
- MACLEOD (McIntyre) -- 6, 7, 9, 10, 11, 14, 29, 30, 31, 43, 44, 46 (pat). (12)
- MACDONALD (D. Miller) -- ~~39~~ (remove one unit; OOG). (0)
- STEWART (Brooks) -- 47, 52, 54, 55, 56, 58, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 81, 84, 86, 42, 50, 59, 77, 83 (may build 4 units; was one short last year, but only has 4 open home supply centers). (23)
- ENGLAND (Mebane) -- 12, 13, 38, 40, 51, 60, 69, 71, 72, 73, 74, 89, 90, 37 (may build one unit). (14 / 8 = 22)

Deadline for WINTER, 1495 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (SPR'96 deadline July 30).

B A R A D - D U R

Issue Number 48 -- Postal Diplomacy Games DFF(1966No), GB-1966XF(1966AAx) -- Ennead

DFF (Miller Nine-Man Diplomacy) -- AUSTRIA, GERMANY CONTINUE RACE FOR SUPREMACY OF EUROPE!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DPSA #'s 1,4,7,9,10, & 14, & BARAD-DUR #46.
FALL, 1906 moves --

- A-H (Mebane) -- F Rom (S) F Nap; F Nap (H); F Adr (H); A Ode-Svs; A Mos-Pol; A Gal-Brl; A Tyo-Mun; A Swi (S) A Tyo-Mun (A Swi D (Pie, o.b.)); A Boh (S) A Tyo-Mun; A Sal (H); A Ven-Tyo.
- FRA (Huff) -- No units on board.
- GER (Latimer) -- A Mun-Swi; A Bur (S) A Mun-Swi; A Brl-Pol; A Pru (S) A Brl-Pol; A StP (H); A Den-Kie; F Hol-Hel; F Bel (H); F Sto-Bot; F Rig (S) A StP.
- IBERIA (Hoheisel) -- A Gas-Brt; F Mid (S) A Gas-Brt; A Par (S) A Gas-Brt; A Cas-Gas; F Mar (H); F Svl (H).
- ITA (Lebling) -- F Cor-Sar.
- RUS (Naus) -- A Sib-StP; F Bot (S) A Sib-StP.
- TUR (D. Miller) -- F Tyn (S) F Trp-Tun; F Trp-Tun; F Ion (S) F Trp-Tun; F Gre (S) F Ion; A Syr-Per; A Con (H); A Cau (H).
- UK (Bischoff) -- F Trd-Chr; F Chr-Ska; F NtS-Bel; F Sar-Cor; F WMe (C) A Tun-Val; F Iri-Mid; F Brt (S) F Iri-Mid; F EnC (S) F Brt; F Pic (S) F Brt; A Tun-Val.

Supply Centers held at end of AUT, 1906 (retreat does not affect count) --

- A-H -- Bud, Bul, Mon, Nap, Ode, Rom, Rum, Ser, Trs, Ven, Vie, Sev, Brl, Mun (may build three units). (14)
- FRA -- ~~Swi~~ (no units on board; OOG). (0)
- GER -- Bel, Ber, Brm, ~~Brk~~, Den, Hol, Kie, Mos, ~~Mun~~, Pol, Rig, StP, Sto, Swi (may build two units, as only has 10 units on board at present). (12)
- ITA -- Cor (stands pat). (1)
- RUS -- Fin, ~~Swi~~ (remove one unit). (1)

TUR -- Can, Con, Egy, Gre, Per; Sin, Smy, Tun (may build one unit). (8)
 UK -- Alg, Brt, Edi, Ice, Ire, Lon, Lvp, Sar, Trd, ~~Tun~~ (remove one unit). (9)
Deadline for AUTUMN, 1906 retreat (A-H: A Swi) and WINTER, 1906 builds/removals --
Noon, Tues., July 9 (SPRING, 1907 deadline will be July 30).

GB-1966XF (Chalker Nine-Man Diplomacy) -- SCANDINAVIA FALLS! RUSSIA CONTINUES
HEADLONG TOWARDS VICTORY!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #15/BARAD-DUR #44.
FALL, 1909 moves --

ENG (Mebane) -- F Mor-WMe; F Spa(SC) (S) F Mor-WMe (H.R. #32) (F Spa(SC) (A));
 F Por (S) F Spa(SC); A Yor-Hol; F NtS (C) A Yor-Hol; F Bel (S) A Yor-Hol; F Nwg-Nor
 (what does "Nor" mean?); F Ska (S) F Nwg-Nor (same question -- can not interpret
 what you mean by "Nor"); A Ume-Sto; F Enc-Mid.

FRA (D. Miller) -- A Ukr-Sev; A Gal-Ukr.

ITA (Gemignani) -- F WMe-Spa(SC); F Lyo (S) F WMe-Spa(SC); A Mar (S) F WMe-
 Spa(SC); A Ven-Pie; A Ser-Sal; A Sal-Con; F Tyn-WMe; F Ion-Trp; F Adr-Ion.

RUS (Brooks) -- A StP-Fin; A Sib-StP; A War-Mos; A Rum (S) FRA A Ukr-Sev; A Bul
 (S) ITA A Ser-Sal; A Ruh-Hol; A Bur-Bel; F Kie (S) A Ruh-Hol; A Sil-Ber; A Mun (S)
 F Kie; F Sto (S) F Mal; F Mal (S) SCA A Den; F Bot-Bal; F Cas (C) A Cau-Per; A Cau-
 Per; A Bud-Gal; A Arm-Smy.

SCANDINAVIA (Levinson) -- A Den (U); A Hol (U) (A).

TUR (Huff) -- F Tun-Trp; F Cre-Ion; A Gre (H); F Bla-Con; A Smy (H).

Supply Centers held at end of FALL, 1909 (no AUTUMN retreats) --

ENG -- Bre, Chr, Edi, Ire, Lon, Lvp, Mor, Osl, Por, ~~Spa~~, Bel (may build
 one unit; one was dest. FALL, 1909). (10)

FRA -- ~~Bel~~, Par, Sev (stands pat). (2)

ITA -- Cor, Mar, Mon, Nap, Rom, Sar, Ser, Trs, Ven, Spa (may build one). (10)

RUS -- Ber, Bud, Bul, Fin, Mal, Mos, Mun, Per, Rum, Rig, StP, Sev, Sil,
 Sto, Swi, Vie, War, Kie, Hol (may build two units). (19)

SCA -- ~~Hol~~, ~~Vie~~ (remove one unit; one was dest. F'09; OOG). (0)

TUR -- Ank, Cre, Con, Gre, Smy, Trp, Tun (may build two units, as only
 has five on board at moment). (7)

Deadline for WINTER, 1909 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (SPR. 1910 dead-
line will be July 30).

D I P S O M A N I A

Issue Number 21 -- Postal Diplomacy Games DBB(1966Dg), DIH(1967Aag) -- THIS is war?

DBB (Economic Diplomacy I) -- ANARCHY IN FRANCE AS GOVERNMENT COLLAPSES! RUSSIA
CONTINUES TO EXPAND!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 1, 4-6, 15. Replacement player
is urgently needed for FRANCE; if interested, contact GM NLT July 9.

AUTUMN, 1906 retreats -- ENG (Huff): F Spa(NC) (R) Por (1); FRA (Open): NMR; GM
(E) Retreating A Mun (2).

Financial Situation at end of AUTUMN, 1906 --

Country	ENG	FRA	ITA	RUS	TUR
On hand at end of FALL, 1906 ..	795 pd	7257 fr	7145 li	725 ro	740 pi
Retreats (AUTUMN, 1906)	-1	-2	-	-	-
Payoffs: Own capital	722	722	722	722	722
Other Sup. Ctrs.	760	760	7140	7200	7120
Maintenance Costs: On home					
territory	-51	-34	-34	-51	-34
On foreign					
territory	-18	-36	-90	-108	-72
On hand at end of AUTUMN, 1906	7107 pd	7267 fr	7183 li	788 ro	778 pi

Supply Centers held at end of AUTUMN, 1906 --

- ENG (Huff) -- Edi, Lvp, Lon, Por, ~~Spa~~ (stands pat; only 4 units on bd.). (4)
 - FRA (Open) -- ~~Bel~~, Bre, Kie, Hol, ~~Mar~~, Par, ~~Mun~~ (stands pat; only 4 units on board). (4)
 - ITA (Brannan) -- Nap, Rom, Tri, Tun, Ven, Vie, Spa, Mar (may build only one unit, as already has 7 units on board). (8)
 - RUS (Kuch) -- Ber, Den, Mos, Nwy, StP, Sev, Swe, War, ~~Rum~~, Bul, Bel, Mun (may build two units, as only has 9 units on board). (11)
 - TUR (Clark) -- Ank, Bud, Con, Gre, Ser, Smy, Rum (may build one unit). (7)
- Deadline for WINTER, 1906 builds -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (SPR'07 deadline Jul.30).

DIH (Economic Diplomacy II) -- FRANCO-ENGLISH WAR HEATS UP! AUSTRIAN ARMY REACHES BALTIC SEA, CUTTING EUROPE IN HALF!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPLOMANIA #'s 7, 8, 12, 15, and 20.
SPRING, 1904 moves --

- A-H (Alderson) -- A Sil-Pru (1); A Gal-Boh (1); A Bud-Rum (2) (NEU A Rum (A)); A Gre-Bul (2); A Ser (S) A Gre-Bul (2); Send \$21 to FRA in F.T. (21); Send \$21 to ITA in F.T. (21); Send \$9 to RUS in F.T. (9).
- ENG (Lebling) -- F EnC-Pic (2); F Lon-Nts (1); A Hol-Kie (2); F Hel (S) A Hol-Kie (2); A Bel (S) F EnC-Pic (H.R. #36) (A Bel (A)) (3 -- was only charged 1 for unused support); Send \$5 to TUR F.T. (5).
- FRA (Pournelle) -- F Mid-Nat (1); F Bre-Mid (1); A Spa-Por (1); F Mar-Spa(SC) (1); A Gas-Bre (1); A Pic-Bel (2); A Bur (S) A Pic-Bel (2); A Par-Pic (2); Send \$6 to GER in F.T. (6).
- GER (Hoheisel) -- A Kie-Ruh (1); A Den-Kie (2); A Mun (S) A Den-Kie (2); A Nwy-StP (2); F Bot (S) A Nwy-StP (2); F Bal-Den (1).
- ITA (Brannan) -- A Apu (H) (0); F Aeg (S) A-H A Gre-Bul (1 -- spt. not needed); F EMe-Smy (2); A Syr (S) F EMe-Smy (2); \$12 to FRA in F.T. (12); \$18 to A-H F.T. (18).
- RUS (Kanner) -- A StP (H) (D (Fin or o.b.)) (2); A War-Lvn (1); A Ukr-Mos (1); A Sev (S) A-H A Bud-Rum (2); Send \$84 to A-H in F.T. (84).
- TUR (Huff) -- A Bul-Rum (A) (4); F Bla (S) A Bul-Rum (2); A Ank (S) F Smy (2); F Con (S) F Smy (1 -- unused spt.); F Smy (H) (2).

Financial situation at end of SPRING, 1904 --

Country	A-H	ENG	FRA	GER	ITA	RUS	TUR
On hand at start of							
SPRING, 1904	\$69 cr	\$25 po	\$7 fr	\$31 mk	\$61 li	\$86 ro	\$19 pi
Unopposed move costs	-2	-1	-5	-2	-	-2	-
Convoy costs	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Unused spt. costs	-	-1	-	-	-1	-	-1
Battle costs	-6	-8	-6	-8	-4	-4	-10
Foreign Trade Out	-51	-5	-6	-	-30	-84	-
Foreign Trade In	\$102	-	\$33	\$6	\$21	\$9	\$5
F.T. Bonus (1/3)	\$34	-	\$11	\$2	\$7	\$3	\$1
On hand at end of							
SPRING, 1904	\$146 cr	\$10 po	\$34 fr	\$29 mk	\$54 li	\$8 ro	\$14 pi

NOTE that there was error in accounting for AUTUMN, 1903, for A-H; maint. costs should have read: "On Home Territory, -34"; "On Foreign Territory, -54". So there should have been \$69 crowson hand for A-H at end of both AUT & WINT '03, instead of the published figure of \$52 crowns.

Devastated Supply Centers at end of SPRING, 1904 -- Kie (18), Bel (18), StP (20), Rum (18), Smy (14), Gre (19), War (19), Bul (17).

Propaganda --

- England -- France: Stop this nonsense immediately. I don't want war, and peace is much more profitable.
- Germany -- The recent move of the English fleet into German waters can be construed as nothing less than an act of war. This government has acted accordingly!
- London -- Turkey: Please return that next time. You can afford it, and it helps both of us.

Paris -- Due to temporary financial difficulties, the returns from the Paris Bourse were smaller than expected this season; however, all payments including 12 to Italy plus three additional to Germany plus interest to each will be paid in Fall. Moreover, the returns from the investment pool are expected to be even larger next year, as France returns the generosity of her trading partners.

Rome -- A Military Justice Tribunal here today decreed that Capt. Walker, the Commander responsible for giving ground support to the wrong fleet, would be punished as follows: he has been assigned to PERMANENT DUTY IN SYRIA!

Turkey -- Italy: I want peace, and you've blown your chance for easy pickings in France, whose economy is going to be blown apart by Germany. You stupid idiot! Well, what else would you expect from an Italian?

Turkey -- Austria, and/or Germany: Help! Money! Arms! Troops! Moral support, even!

Versailles -- King Pippin IV announced that diplomatic efforts to prevent war with England have now reached the crisis level. His Majesty said, "English threats to invade French territory have been taken to be mere propaganda. However, We cannot discharge Our duties to the realm if We do less than take all necessary actions to defend Ourselves against the latest English arrogance. The only major problem remains the Calais Straits; however, England also threatens Our ally, Germany, and We cannot see Germany destroyed."

Deadline for SUMMER, 1904 retreat (RUS: A StP) -- Noon, Tues., July 9. (FALL, 1904 deadline will be July 23.)

L I M B O

Issue Number 5 -- Postal Diplomacy Games DAA(1966Cf), DGA(1966Hf), DGA(1966Wf).

Note that DJI(1967Bah) has been transferred to VARIOSO. -- John Doe Rides Again!

DAA (Game of Anonymity #1) -- RUSSIA CONTINUES TO EXPAND AS ITALY LOSES GROUND!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 1, 6, 8, and 13.

FALL, 1907 moves --

ENG -- F StP(NC) (S) F NtS-Nwy; F Ska (S) F NtS-Nwy; F NtS-Nwy; F Nwg-Bar.

FRA -- A Hol (H); A Bel (S) A Hol; A Bur (S) RUS A Mun; A Mar (H); F Spa(SC)-Lyo; F WMe-Tyn; F Naf-WMe; F Tun (S) F WMe-Tyn.

ITA -- F Lyo-Pie; F Tyn-Ion; F Nap (S) F Tyn-Ion; F Rom-Tus; F Bul(SC)-Con; A Rum-Sev; A Boh-Mun; A Tyo (S) A Boh-Mun; A Gre-Bul.

RUS -- F Bar-StP(NC); A Nwy (S) F Bar-StP(NC); A Swe (S) A Nwy; A Den (S) A Kie; A Kie (S) A Mun; A Mun (H); A Ank (S) A Smy-Con; A Smy-Con.

TUR -- F Adr-Ven; F Bla-Sev.

Supply Centers held at end of FALL, 1907 (no AUTUMN retreats) --

ENG -- Edi, Lvp, Lon, ~~Mw~~, StP (stands pat). (4)

FRA -- Bel, Bre, Hol, Mar, Par, Por, Spa, Tun (stands pat). (8)

ITA -- Bud, Bul, Gre, Nap, Rom, Rum, Ser, Tri, ~~Vph~~, Vie (remove one). (9)

RUS -- Ank, Ber, Den, Kie, Mos, Mun, ~~StP~~, Sev, Swe, War, Con, Nwy (may build three units, as only has 8 units on board). (11)

TUR -- ~~Ch~~, Smy, Ven (stands pat). (2)

Propaganda --

Rome -- To the nations of the world, most especially those at war with the Kingdom of Italy: The only nation with whom we are irrevocably at war is the Russian Empire. All others, including the Republic of France, we will consider as we would any erring neighbor. We will not undertake offensive operations against the Ottoman Empire, the British Empire, or the Republic of France, as our moves of this season show -- we have acted defensively against the French Republican Navy and have, we hope, aided the Ottomans in holding on to their capital city against the onslaughts of the Russians. #### We are the first to confess our warmth towards the "other Latins" to our west, but we are also the first to acknowledge that our diplomacy in

their area has been less than perfect. This is true of, I suppose, all the countries -- we have been less than candid about our aims, and less than perfect in our military policy. However, we hope this missive clarifies our intentions. ##### Most especially as far as our policy with regard to France, we assure the President that his forces now in Russia will not be attacked, and urge him to withdraw his fleets now operating in the Western Mediterranean and in Spain. We would sincerely hope that indeed the day of the hegemony in Europe of the Latin peoples, both French and Italian, has come, and wish him on in a successful war with the Slavic usurpers, who are coming even closer than our own powers to dominion in the continent -- more than a third of it is under his control, while I own but a fourth, as do you. Together we can defeat him -- alone we will go separately to our separate dooms. We owe more to destiny than that!

Turkey -- Never did care much for anti-pasta.

Deadline for WINT '07 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., Jul. 9 (SPR '08 deadline Jul.23).

DCA (Game of Anonymity #2) -- COUP IN AUSTRIA-HUNGARY! ANARCHY IN ITALY! RUSSIA RETAKES ST. PETERSBURG!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 1,2,5-7, & 13, & LIMBO #'s 2,4. There is a new player in A-H. Also, there is a replacement player urgently needed for ITALY; if interested contact GM NLT July 9.

SPRING, 1906 moves --

- A-H -- A War-Ukr; A Ukr-Rum; A Tri (S) A Gre-Ser; A Gre-Ser; F Ion-Aeg.
- ENG -- A Den (H); A StP (S) F NtS-Nwy (A StP D (Fin, Lvn, o.b.)); F Bar (S) F NtS-Nwy; F NtS-Nwy; F Hel-NtS; F Lon-EnC; F Bal-Swe.
- FRA -- F Spa(SC)-WMe; F Mar-Lyo; A Gas-Spa; A Par-Bur; A Bre-Par; A Mun-Tyo; A Kie-Ber.
- ITA -- A Tyo (U); A Ven (U); A Tus (U); F Por (U).
- RUS -- F Nwy-StP(NC); A Mos (S) F Nwy-StP(NC); A Sev-Rum; A Arm-Sev.
- TUR -- A Ser-Rum (D (Alb, Bud, o.b.)); A Con-Bul; F Ank (H); F Smy (H).

Propaganda --

Moscow -- Vienna & London: Your imperialistic actions are viewed most dimly by the Russian people; if not corrected, the people will be forced to do the correcting themselves.

Moscow -- Constantinople: Your help would be greatly appreciated and rewarded in clearing out the Austrian filth from this part of the world.

Deadline for SUMMER, 1906 retreats (ENG: A StP; TUR: A Ser) -- Noon, Tues. Jul. 9 (FALL, 1906 deadline will be July 23).

DGA (Game of Anonymity #3) -- NEW GOVERNMENT TAKES OVER IN TURKEY! ITALY IN STATE OF ANARCHY AS ITALIAN GOVERNMENT FALLS!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 2,5,7,8,11, & 13, & LIMBO #4. There is a new player in TURKEY, and a replacement player is urgently needed to take over A-H; if interested in A-H, contact GM NLT July 9.

SPRING, 1905 moves --

- A-H -- F Bul(SC) (U).
- ENG -- F Wal (S) A Cly-Lvp; A Cly-Lvp (F in Cly, not A).
- FRA -- A Bel-Pic; A Bur-Mar; F Mar-Spa(SC); A Pic-Par; F Bre-EnC; F Lvp (H); A Gas (H).
- GER -- A Den (H); F Hel (S) A Den; A Mun-Ruh; A Hol-NtS (F in Hol, not A); A Ber-Kie.
- ITA -- A Tri (H); A Ven (S) A Tri; A Alb (H); F Adr (S) A Alb; F Ion (S) A Alb.
- RUS -- A Arm-Smy; F Sev-Bla; F Bal (H); A Swe (S) A Nwy; A Nwy (S) A Swe; A War-Gal; A Rum-Bul; A Ser (S) A Rum-Bul; A Vie (H); A Bud (S) A Ser.
- TUR -- A Con-Bul; F Aeg (S) A Con-Bul; F Bla-Sev.

Propaganda --

Berlin -- Russia: Perhaps your army is going south. Could your fleet go east, too?

Berlin -- France: I'll support you into London in the fall, or take Edinburgh if I can....

France -- Germany: Belgium is yours.

France -- Italy: Our borders are still neutralized.

France -- GM: How come my moves for Austria and Turkey weren't printed?

Italy -- World: We have made completely neutral moves this turn while we wait for ideas. Past treaties are not necessarily binding but they probably would influence future actions.

Deadline for SUM '05 propaganda (no SUM retreats) -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (FALL, 1905 deadline will be July 23).

SUPERCALIFRAGILISTICEXPIALIDOCIOUS

Issue Number 21 -- Postal Diplomacy games SAA(1966Op), SEE(1967AAay) -- Ochlocracy!

SAA (Game of Anarchy I) -- NEW GOVERNMENTS TAKE THE HELM IN EDINBURGH, PARIS, AND RUMANIA, BUT RUMANIA FALLS TO SEVASTOPOL IMMEDIATELY!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See SUPERCAL #'s 10, 13-15, 19. New players are Bill Linden (RUMANIA), Edi Birsan (EDINBURGH), and Dan Brannan (PARIS). Dave Bischoff (BREST) and Rod Walker (LIVERPOOL), are you still playing? If so, please let GM know NLT July 9; anyone wanting to take over BRE or LVP please contact GM NLT Jul.9, in case...

SPRING, 1906 moves --

ANKARA (Latimer) -- A Con-Bul; F Bla (S) SEV A Sev-Rum; F Aeg (S) A Con-Bul.

BERLIN (Naus) -- A Hol-Kie; A Mun-Sil; A Ber (S) A Mun-Sil.

BREST (Bischoff?) -- F Por (U); F Spa(SC) (U).

DENMARK (Huff) -- F Bot-StP(SC).

EDINBURGH (Birsan) -- F Swe-Den; F Nwy-Swe.

LIVERPOOL (Walker; by Stand-by player IAW General Orders) -- F Mid (H); F Bre (S).

LONDON (Mebane) -- F Den-Kie; F Hel (S) F Den-Kie. F Mid.

PARIS (Brannan) -- A Bur-Gas; A Bel-Bur.

ROME (Kuch) -- F Nap-Tyn; A Rom (H); A Ven-Tyo.

RUMANIA (Linden) -- A Rum (S) VIE A Ser-Bul (VIE A Ser not so ordered) (A Rum (A)).

SEVASTOPOL (J. Johnson) -- A Lvn-StP; A Sil-Gal; A Sev-Rum; A Ukr (S) A Sev-Rum.

ELECTORATE OF BULGARIA AND UPPER SWEETWATER CANYON (Von Metzke) -- A Bul-Ser;

A Bud (S) A Bul-Ser; F Tun-NAf; F Gre-Alb; F Tri-Alb.

VIENNA (Gemignani) -- A Ser-Rum (A); A Vie (H).

Propaganda --

Electorate of Bulgaria and Upper Sweetwater Canyon (3 Feb 1906) -- We are strong and most of the rest of you are weak. But we detest benevolent protectorates, and are fully willing to remain at peace with anybody who has the same idea. This applies particularly to the Russian Empire, who seems like a pleasant enough person. Which is inadvertent personification of a political entity, but who cares -- the idea's the same in either case. Be nice, because we have plans that don't involve you in any way. This applies, inter alia, to most of the rest of you too.

Jasi (8 Jan 1906) -- Order was restored to Rumania today as the celebrated condottiere Sir Elric Lessingham entered the city, fresh from his defeat of the proud, pestilent, pusillanimous, pernicious, pornocratic tyrant of Holmia, Horius Peery. Upon hearing the news, the Parliament inanimously elected him Supreme Ruler of All Rumania and ended its five-year continuous session. The Supreme Ruler's first official act was to declare war on and lead the army to the conquest of CLASSIFIED MOST SECRET.

Deadline for FALL, 1906 moves (no SUM retreats) -- Noon, Tues., Jul.23.

SEE (Anarchy III) -- BEL/GRE FLEET SCUTTLED IN AEGEAN! LAST REMAINING KIE/ROM UNITS SURRENDER IN KIEL!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See SUPERCAL #'s 11-15, 17, 18, 20.

SUMMER, 1902 retreats -- BEL/GRE (Nemeth) -- NMR; GM (E) Retreating F Aeg; KIE/ROM (Ogle): NMR: GM (E) Retreating AAF Kie; Nwy/VEN (Buchman): FFF Nwy (R) Ska.

Propaganda --

ASDP Party Headquarters, somewhere in the Black Forest -- "Fear not, for I am but a lowly toad!"

Mun/Por -- Kie/Rom: I have a large problem. He is Bre/Tri. I wonder what he is up to?

Mun/Por -- Edi/Mos: Mun/Por seeks an alliance with you.

NSG -- At it again, Buddy?

Deadline for FALL, 1902 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 16 (AUT/WINT '02 deadline Jul.30).

A S T R A

Issue Number 5 -- Postal Diplomacy Game SCC(1967Yaw) ---- War in Space and Time....

SCC (The Foundation Game) -- HISTORY TO REPEAT ITSELF AS GM GOOFS AGAIN!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See SUPERCAL #'s 10, 11, 13. Note that George Schelz is playing the FIRST FOUNDATION in place of Alan Huff (not the FIRST EMPIRE).

GM Note -- GM goofed in ASTRA #3, and allowed Margaret Gemignani to support thru hyperspace with four units at the same time. This is clearly in violation of SCC game rule #6, which states, in part, that "only one unit may pass through a spacewarp at the same time" -- since a unit gives up its move in order to support, this rule clearly limits supports through a single hyperspace linkage to one per turn. Rather than set a precedent by allowing this error to stand, the following corrections should be made to ASTRA #3: Under "SPRING, 8003 moves", opp. ASSOC. OF INDEPENDENT TRADERS, underline "FFFF Haven(46) (S) via hs F Loris(55)"; change "FFF Iss(50) (S) F Loris(55)" to "FFF Iss(50) (S) F Loris(55); underline "F Loris(55) (H)", and add after it "(D (50 or o.b.))". Opposite FIRST FOUNDATION moves, remove underlining from beneath "F Daribow(56)-Loris(55)", "FFFF Terminus(60) (S) F 56-55", and F Anacreon(59) (S) F 56-55". ##### In ASTRA #4, add "SUMMER, 1903 retreat -- AIT (Gemignani): F Loris (55) (R) Iss(50)". ##### Now what this all means is that there is a FIRST FOUNDATION unit in 55 instead of an AIT unit, and there is an additional AIT unit in 50. And there has been no new precedent established allowing more than one unit at a time to pass through or support through a single hyperspace linkage. So some of you are advised to revise your orders for FALL, 8003.

Deadline for revised FALL, 8003 orders -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (AUT/WINT, 8003 deadline will be July 23).

S C H I Z O P H R E N I A

Issue Number 5 -- Postal Diplomacy Games DDD(1966Jl), DHG(1966ABy) -- Dipsy-Doodles

DDD (Twin-Earths Diplomacy) -- LULL IN WAR CONTINUES AS POWERS PREPARE TO RESUME FIGHTING!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 1,8,10,14-16, & SCHIZO #'s 2,3. Replacement needed for GERMANY; if interested, send FALL '06 moves to GM NLT Jul. 9.

SUMMER, 1906 retreat -- RUS (Boskey): F DenI (R) SkaI.

Deadline for FALL, 1906 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (AUT/WINT '06 deadline Jul.23).

DHG (Microdiplomacy) -- ANARCHY REIGNS IN ENGLAND AND TURKEY, AND MAY BE GETTING THE UPPER HAND IN AUSTRIA-HUNGARY AND ITALY!

The Players, Rules and Board -- See DIPSOMANIA #'s 1,8,10,14-16. Replacement urgently needed for Hoheisel (TURKEY) and Huff (ENGLAND). Also, Mike Miller (A-H) and Jim Latimer (ITA), are you still playing? If so, contact GM NLT July 9. Anyone wanting to take over any of these 4 positions as replacement player please contact GM NLT July 9.

SPRING, 1906 moves --

A-H (M. Miller?) -- C Boh (U); CC Mun (U) (A).

ENG (Open) -- F Lvp (U).

FRA (Clark) -- F NtS (H); TT Edi-Cly; CC Wal (H); T Lon (S) CC Wal; F Bre-EnC;
A Par-Bur; A Mar-Pie; A Ber (S) A Ruh-Mun (A Ber (A)); A Ruh-Mun; T Kie (S) A Ber;
A Ven (S) TT Tyn-Rom; TT Tyn-Rom; F Nap (S) T Tun-Ion; T Tyn (S) F Nap; F WMe-Tun;
T Tun-Ion; T Spa(SC)-WMe; C Naf (H).

ITA (Latimer?) -- C Tyo (U); C Vie (U); A Rom (U) (D (Tus or o.b.)); C Apu (U).

RUS (Prosnitz) -- C Bud (S) ITA C Vie; CC Bud (S) CC Ukr-Gal; CC Ukr-Gal; C Ukr
(S) A Rum; A Rum (S) CC Ukr-Gal; A Sev (S) A Rum; C War-Pru; CC War-Sil; C Sil-Ber;
F Bal (S) C Sil-Ber; T Den-Kie; T Den (S) T Swe-Den; T Swe-Den; CC Nwy (H); T StP(NC)
(S) CC Nwy; TT StP(NC)-Bar.

TUR (Open) -- CC Tri (U); F Adr (U); T Alb (U); C Ser (U); A Bul (U); CC Gre
(U); C Con (U); TT Aeg (U); A Arm (U).

Deadline for SUMMER, 1906 retreat (ITA: A Rom) -- Noon, Tues., July 9 (To GGM,
Terry Kuch). (FALL, 1906 deadline (to Terry Kuch) -- Noon, Fri., July 19.)

Replacement Players (Cont. from page 1) -- If more than one person applies, replacement is chosen by lot from among applicants. There is no fee for a replacement player. Be warned, move-missers -- we are cracking down on chronic move-missers....

The Gamesmasters -- For all games but DHG, Don Miller, 12315 Judson Rd., Wheaton, Md., 20906 (ph. 301-933-5417; call only between 8 & 11 p.m. EDT weekdays except Fri. For DHG, Terry Kuch is Guest-Gamesmaster (1910 13th St., North, Apt. 204, Arlington, Va., 22201; ph. 703-JA5-2169). Remember, DHG players, send moves to KUCH!

The "House-Rules" -- As published in DIPLOMANIA #18; read these carefully!

Miscellaneous -- Note that there are different deadlines for the different games in this issue; this will be the policy from now on. Remember, also, that deadlines are day of receipt by GM. ##### HYPA sub-zines VARIOSO and CHAOS will be included in DPBA #27. ##### SDD teams are advised to sign up for Major Powers (only three positions remain) in DMK, as SDD looks like it will be permanently grounded. As SDD fee was \$2, and DMK Major Powers cost \$3, interested teams send in \$1 with application. Players of Major Powers will be chosen by lot; players signing up for Major Neutrals or Minor Neutrals in DMK please list choices in order of preference (fees are \$2 and \$1, resp., payable with application). DMK rules were published in DIPLOMANIA 19/20. AUX ARMES #1 will be out soon with more info on DMK (DMK will be in AA rather than in PSYCHOMANIA). ##### DIPLOMANIA #21 (25¢ ea.; 5/\$1) still in preparation.

DIPLOPHOBIA is published weekly (with #27), and is free to all participants in games being played therein. Others may receive DPBA via 1st-class mail for \$1.25 for 10 issues, mailed out as issues are published, or for \$1 for 10 issues via 3rd-class mail, sent out 2 issues at a time. Back issues are 15¢ ea., when available. For trades, write GM. Address code: A, SDD Team Capt.; P, player in game within; S, Sample; T, Trade; W, Subscriber (no. indicates last issue of sub.); X, last issue, unless....

DIPLOMANIA

Don Miller

12315 Judson Rd.

Wheaton, Md., 20906

Return Postage guaranteed

TO:

Larry Percy (T)

4567 Virginia Ave.

San Diego, Calif. 92115

Don Miller



Printed Matter Only - 3rd Class Mail

POST OFFICE MAIL